

Registered Provider

Draft Partnership Agreement 2014

Table of contents

		Page
1.	Introduction	3
2.	The Council's Corporate Plan and Priorities	3 – 4
3.	Objectives of this Agreement	4
4.	Roles & responsibilities	4 – 8
5.	Equalities	8
6.	Tenancy Strategy	8 – 9
7.	Lettings & Nominations	9 – 12
8.	Affordability & Rents	12 – 14
9.	Use of Existing Stock	14 – 17
10.	Housing Standards (inc Management & Repairs etc)	18 – 23
11.	Housing Development and Investment	23 – 26
12.	Safeguarding	27 - 28
13.	Monitoring the Agreement	28 – 29
14.	Addressing Poor Performance	29
15.	Appendices	

1. Introduction

- 1.1 This agreement sets out the principles that will guide, shape and influence the way in which Haringey Council and registered providers work together to deliver high quality housing services across the borough.
- 1.2 The principal aim of the partnership is to develop a shared set of objectives that will raise the quality and standard of affordable housing and housing management in the borough.
- 1.3 This agreement outlines the roles, responsibilities and expectations of the partnership, to enable an effective partnership to deliver the highest standards of accommodation and housing management.

2. The Council's Corporate Plan and Priorities

- 2.1 The Corporate Plan is the Council's key strategic document that sets out its vision for the future of Haringey: 'One Borough, One Future'. It is at the heart of everything we do and informs how we will work with partners to ensure that everyone who lives in Haringey has the opportunity to lead a successful and fulfilling life.
- 2.2 There are four key outcomes for the period of the plan:
 - Outstanding for all
 - Safety and wellbeing for all
 - Opportunities for all
 - A better council
- 2.3 There are a number of guiding principles that underpin our vision.
 - A one borough focus serving all residents in the borough with high quality services
 - Investing in prevention and early help improving the life chances of residents and reducing costs

- Promoting equality tackling the barriers facing the most disadvantaged, enabling them to achieve their potential
- Empowering communities enabling people to do more for themselves
- Working in partnership leading local partnership so that we achieve more, together

3. Aims & objectives of this Agreement

- 3.1 The principle aim of this Agreement is to raise the quality and standard of the provision of affordable housing in the borough. The objectives are to:
 - (a) Establish a partnership approach to the provision, management and maintenance of affordable housing to raise standards across the borough;
 - (b) Contribute towards and support the growth and regeneration of Haringey and enhance the life chances of Haringey residents;
 - (c) Contribute towards a more balanced portfolio of housing across the borough and ensure that everyone has a decent place to live;
 - (d) Help vulnerable households, prevent homelessness and keep households out of bed and breakfast and reduce the use of temporary accommodation;
 - (e) Promote new and cost effective construction methods and that conserve energy, tackle fuel poverty and reduce carbon emissions;
 - (f) Share best practice and expertise amongst the partnership;

4. Roles & Responsibilities

4.1 All parties have a shared responsibility to agree to the terms of this Agreement and will adhere to the principles set out within it.

The Council's Strategic and Enabling Role

4.2 The Council is responsible for developing a strategic approach to the assessment of housing need and provision of housing services in the borough. This approach is set out in the Council's Housing Strategy. In order to ensure that the objectives of this Strategy are fulfilled, the Council will consult with, promote and facilitate the work of registered

providers and other statutory and voluntary agencies that provide housing and associated services in the borough.

Strategic Role

4.3 The Council will: -

- (a) Assess the operation of the wider housing market, and commission research to identify housing need across the borough and regularly review this data to ensure it is up to date.
- (b) Produce, co-ordinate and consult on a local Housing Strategy and monitor its impact.
- (c) Ensure the needs of all minority groups are considered.
- (d) Endeavour to keep information up to date and provide partners with clear guidance on policy changes.
- (e) Agree and communicate the appropriate tenure split between affordable housing (rent and intermediate) and market homes, based upon identified needs within the borough.
- (f) Promote the effective use and excellent management of existing housing stock.
- (g) Liaise with all statutory and non statutory partners regarding the provision of housing, support and care, and the varying statutory responsibilities particularly under the Community Care Act 1990, the Children's Act 1989, the Haringey Supporting People Strategy and any subsequent legislation.
- (h) Embed housing and related issues into corporate and Partnership Strategies.
- (i) Ensure that partners are appropriately involved at all key stages of strategy development and implementation;
- (j) Ensure that partners are given sufficient lead-in time for providing input to the development of strategies, policies and the provision of data.
- (k) Facilitate partnership meetings, disseminate information and seek to improve relations with strategic bodies.
- 4.4 The Council is committed to improving access to services for all groups in Haringey and values the work of community based registered providers engaged in specialist and culturally sensitive services to support the diverse communities in Haringey. The Council will work proactively with these organisations and other registered providers in line with the Council's Equal Opportunities Policy 2008.

Enabling Role

- 4.5 In fulfilling its enabling role the Council will: -
 - (a) Maximise available resources to deliver new housing in the borough, including its own capital investment and land where appropriate.
 - (b) Identify, assemble and dispose of suitable land in its ownership.
 - (c) Utilise planning policies to meet housing need within the borough.
 - (d) Promote the work of Registered Providers within the borough.
 - (e) Publicise its list of partner registered providers in planning and other documentation to private developers and other relevant parties, and seek to involve partners at the earliest opportunity in effectively negotiating Section 106 agreements;

The Role of Elected Members

- 4.7 Elected members have a wide range of roles and responsibilities that will both impact on and influence the way in which registered providers operate in the borough.
- 4.8 As Community Leaders, local councillors are best-placed to take a comprehensive overview of the needs and priorities of their local areas and communities and lead the work to meet those needs. This can only be achieved through active partnership with other organisations such as registered providers. In carrying out this role, Members will engage with local residents, communities and organisations to support local projects, initiatives and services, and explain what political decisions and structures mean to local people and service providers. Registered providers should support this role by keeping Members informed of local projects and initiatives, consulting on any changes to local policy and ensuring that they are invited to specific events such as estate walkabouts.
- 4.9 As **Local Representatives** elected members have a duty to represent their constituents both inside and outside the council. From time to time, this may involve acting on behalf of tenants of registered providers that are unhappy with the service their landlord is providing e.g. if they are having difficulty getting a repair done or the condition of the estate is unsatisfactory. In this case, local councillors may contact the registered provider direct or ask an officer of the Council to do so on their behalf. Registered providers should make

every effort to respond to Member Enquiries within the Council's specified timeframe (10 working days).

4.10 In carrying out their roles, Elected Members may wish to **scrutinise** how registered providers are performing when delivering their services. While Members do not have an official scrutiny role in respect of registered providers they do have the right to ask probing questions and seek information on behalf of their constituents. In addition, Members may, from time to time, request to meet local registered providers to discuss any issues or concerns they may have. Partners to this Agreement will be expected to comply with any such request providing reasonable notice is given.

Principal Responsibilities of Registered Provider Partners

- 4.11 Registered providers operating in the borough will work closely with the Council and statutory and voluntary sector partners to deliver housing and housing related services.
- 4.12 In fulfilling their role, registered providers will -
 - (a) Comply with all GLA and HCA requirements with regards their operations
 - (b) Proactively contribute to the delivery of Haringey Council's strategies and supply such information as is required by the Council for monitoring purposes.
 - (c) Advise the Council of sites and property purchases under consideration so as to avoid duplication of effort and inappropriate competition.
 - (d) Discuss all development proposals with the Council at the earliest opportunity and deal with development opportunities in accordance with the Council's Developer's Guidance Notes and the Toolkit for Affordable Housing.
 - (e) Make best endeavours to complete all legal agreements and comply with all planning conditions in a timely manner.
 - (f) Comply with planning agreements drafted by the Council and consider and notify them of the need for any necessary variations at the earliest possible stage.
 - (g) Work with the Council and other registered providers to improve the standard and efficiency of housing management and maintenance within the borough
 - (h) Work in partnership with the Council on the reduction of Homelessness and the numbers of households in temporary accommodation.

- (i) Have a formal complaints procedure, which is published and freely available to customers.
- (j) Ensure the views and requirements of tenants and customers are fully considered and provide the Council with information on customer satisfaction including new housing developments.
- (k) Inform and, where appropriate, consult the Council of significant areas of new policy.
- (I) Provide consultation comments on Council Strategies and significant documents when invited to do so.
- (m)Participate in liaison meetings with the Council and an Annual Review Process.
- (n) Provide up to date information about their activities in the borough on a quarterly basis (e.g. updated property lists by location and lettings information).

5. Equalities

- 5.1 The Equality Act 2010 introduced the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) that requires public bodies to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations between different people when carrying out their activities.
- 5.2 Schedule 19 of the Equality Act 2010 lists the public bodies that are subject to the public sector equality duty. Social housing providers other than local authorities are included in that list, which means that partners to this agreement are individually subject to that duty and must ensure that in the performance of their functions as social housing providers, they must each ensure that the requirements of that duty are met.

6. Tenancy Strategy

6.1 The Localism Act 2011 has placed a requirement on each local authority to produce a Tenancy Strategy outlining its approach to social tenancies. Such strategies are particularly helpful in areas of very high housing need and demand such as Haringey. The Council currently offers lifetime tenancies following a satisfactory 12 month Introductory Tenancy. The Council has consulted on other options. The consultation document can be found at:

http://www.haringey.gov.uk/index/housing_and_planning/housingstrategy/tenanc_y-strategy.htm

6.2 The outcome of consultation and any recommendations will be put before Haringey's Cabinet in 2014.

7. Lettings & Nominations

7.1 The Council's current allocation policy was revised in 2011 to reflect the adoption of choice based lettings. The policy prioritises households using the reasonable preference categories. Households are ordered by band depending on relative need. Within a band households are prioritised by time waiting. Households under-occupying their accommodation are prioritised for rehousing. The policy also allows for the establishment of local lettings schemes. The current Allocation Scheme can be found at:

http://www.haringey.gov.uk/haringeys housing allocations policy 2011.pdf

7.2 The Council has been consulting on proposals regarding changes to the Policy in line with new powers pursuant to the Localism Act 2011 and the revised Code of Guidance on Allocations. The consultation documents can be found at:

http://www.haringey.gov.uk/index/housing and planning/housingstrategy/tenancy-strategy.htm

- 7.3 The outcome of consultation and any recommendations will be put before Haringey's Cabinet in 2014.
- 7.4 Registered providers shall :-
 - (a) provide the Council with 100% nomination rights for initial lettings on all new developments.
 - (b) provide the Council with 75% nomination rights on all subsequent lets of "true void" properties in their housing stock.

- (c) undertake to closely monitor nominations to the Council to ensure that these quotas are met within the financial year (April March).
- 7.5 In calculating the proportion of "true void" properties to be made available to the Council, registered providers shall define a "true void" as being:
 - (a) Voids within new build, newly acquired or newly rehabilitated schemes.
 - (b) Voids created through tenant moves to other landlords where no reciprocal arrangement exists, including moves made under mobility schemes.
 - (c) Voids created by registered provider transfers within Haringey where the transfer is to another landlord.
 - (d) Voids created through tenant transfers to another borough or another landlord where no reciprocal arrangement exists <u>except</u> when such transfers are made on the grounds of racial harassment or violence.
 - (e) Voids created by tenants buying or renting their own property in the private sector, through the Tenants Incentive Scheme, or through making other accommodation arrangements.
 - (f) Voids created by the death of a tenant where there is no statutory or contractual right to succession.
 - (g) Voids created by eviction or abandonment of the property.
 - (h) Voids created by decants once works are completed.
- 7.6 The following are defined as 'non' true voids and would therefore fall outside the nominations agreement.
 - (a) Voids created by temporarily decanted tenants
 - (b) Voids created by mutual exchanges
 - (c) Voids created as a result of tenant transfers within HA own stock and within the borough of Haringey.
- 7.7 Registered providers shall advise the Council six months prior to completion of new build homes of the size, type, and availability dates of the properties. Where a property has adaptations, details of this must be provided to enable the Council to identify clients with a matching housing need, The provider should facilitate early viewings by professionals such as Occupational Therapists at the request of the Council.

- 7.8 Registered providers are expected to achieve a lettable standard for each void property to which the Council has nomination rights. This standard should be set by the provider's published policy and be made available to the Council on request.
- 7.9 Requests from Registered Providers to implement Local Lettings Policies will be subject to negotiation in line with the Council's Allocations Policy and will need to be accompanied by a comprehensive Equalities Impact Assessment.
- 7.10 A copy of the Haringey Council Nominations Agreement is attached at Appendix X.
- 7.11 Registered Providers shall only reject a nominee in the following specific circumstances:
 - (a) If the circumstances of the nominated household have changed since they were last assessed by the Council, or, if new information has come to light since the assessment was made, such that the offer is unsuitable.
 - (b) If a property is unsuitable for the nominated household because the household is too large or small for the unit, according to the providers own allocations policy.
 - (c) If the rejection is approved following negotiation with the Housing Assessments & Lettings Manager.
 - (d) Providers shall not offer a nominee a different unit from that originally made available unless previously agreed with the Housing Assessments and Lettings Manager.
 - (e) All cases where a nominee has been rejected should be escalated to the Housing Assessments and Lettings Manager for decision.
- 7.12 Nominees shall have the right of appeal in line with the Council's published lettings policy. The right of appeal relates only to the suitability of the offer.
- 7.13 The Council shall consider sympathetically any requests from registered providers for reciprocal lettings arrangements. These will be considered on a case by case basis by senior officers (after consultation with Homes for Haringey) who will have particular regard to:
 - (a) The comparability of the units (e.g. size, quality, area, timetable for availability)
 - (b) Whether it will prevent statutory homelessness

- (c) Whether it is necessary to achieve expenditure within a necessary timescale
- (d) Whether it is necessary to prevent violence/harassment
- (e) Other exceptional circumstances to be agreed by negotiation
- 7.14 Providers must exhaust existing avenues to assist their tenants before requesting consideration of a reciprocal let. The Pan-London Reciprocal Agreement should be the default document.
- 7.15 Any reciprocal arrangements will not fall within the nomination quota outlined in section
- 7.16 A more detailed procedure for the nominations and letting process is included at Appendix xx

Preventing discrimination

- 7.17 Both the Council and its registered provider partners are strongly committed to actively tackling discrimination on the grounds of ethnicity, disability, gender, religion/belief, age or sexuality.
- 7.18 Registered Providers and the Council shall operate equal opportunity policies designed to prevent and eliminate discrimination in the provision of social housing. Equalities information will be collected and will form part of the monitoring information required in the lettings return.
- 7.19 The lettings sub-group shall review the equalities data collected on an annual basis and may jointly set annual targets to ensure appropriate lettings

8. Affordability & Rents

Affordable Rent

8.1 The Affordable Homes Programme (2011 to 2015) signaled a significant reduction in government subsidy for affordable housing and introduced Affordable Rent as the main type of new housing supply.

- 8.2 The Council recognises that by receiving less government subsidy for new affordable housing, registered providers have to charge higher rents to tenants (up to 80% of local market rents).
- 8.3 The Council is keen to ensure that Affordable Rents are set at a level that is affordable for local residents and expects registered providers to engage fully with Council officers to agree rents that are realistic and sustainable.
- 8.4 Registered providers can 'flip' existing social rented properties to affordable rent when they become void to support their investment in new supply. Providers must enter into a timely and 'open book' dialogue with the Council if they intend to flip existing social rented units in the borough. Where a provider flips a social rented unit to affordable rent in the borough, the Council expects the additional income to be re-invested in new supply in Haringey.

Welfare Reform

- 8.5 The Council believes that the Government's Welfare Reforms on low income households will be have a significant impact on local residents. In Haringey, the cap has, in some cases, made even social rents unsustainable for some households. As a social landlord itself, the Council understands the drivers on income recovery, and expects registered providers to have sensitive and appropriate procedures which go beyond traditional income recovery methods to work with tenants to sustain their tenancies. Registered providers should liaise closely with the Council on all cases where tenants may be at risk of losing their accommodation because of benefit reductions, and that all possible alternatives will have been thoroughly explored before any tenant of a registered provider has to seek assistance from the Council.
- 8.6 In common with many social landlords, the Council is concerned about some of the implications of Universal Credit in particular the move to monthly payments in arrears and the reduction in the facility for rent to be paid directly to landlords. Both of these measures will inevitably have an impact on rent arrears and the Council would welcome a continuing dialogue and formal sharing of information with its partners as the Universal Credit project moves forward. All registered providers should adapt their income collection procedures and have proactive measures in place to mitigate the impact of

Universal Credit and other benefit reforms. Examples of such measures would include debt and benefit advice, access to IT for some tenants where appropriate, employment advice and the facilitation of credit unions.

9 Use of Existing Stock

Empty Properties

- 9.1 If a Registered Provider has any empty properties that need extensive works to bring them up to a lettable standard, then a detailed programme of works specifying timescales and suitable deadlines should be drawn up and supplied to the Council.
- 9.2 A long term programme should be adopted to bring all empty properties back in to use.
- 9.3 The signatories to this Agreement agree to work with the Council where viable on initiatives to bring empty properties back into use as affordable housing.
- 9.4 Empty properties owned by registered providers should be maintained in a condition that prevents illegal occupation and which deters or does not invite vandalism and other antisocial behaviour. A programme of works or disposal strategy should be in place to ensure that such properties do not remain empty for any significant length of time.
- 9.5 It is acknowledged that there will be occasions when it is appropriate for a registered provider to dispose of some of its existing stock, for example when it is uneconomic to repair. Partners must consult the Council prior to any disposals within the borough, and where appropriate, reinvest the proceeds of any sales into projects within the borough.

Decent Homes

- 9.6 All signatories to this Agreement must actively work to provide decent homes for the residents of Haringey.
- 9.7 The definition of a decent home is defined as meeting four criteria:

- It meets the current statutory minimum standard for housing (and is free from Category 1 hazards as defined by the Housing Act 2004)
- It is in a reasonable state of repair
- It has reasonably modern facilities
- It provides a reasonable degree of thermal comfort
- 9.8 Registered Providers must have a programme of works set in place to bring their stock up to, and maintain at, a decent home standard.

Stock Condition (Housing, Health and Safety)

- 9.9 In its capacity as a Local Housing Authority, Haringey Council has duties and powers set out in the Housing Act 2004 for the regulation of housing standards. This includes a mandatory duty to take enforcement action to remove Category 1 Hazards in any residential premises¹. Powers are also contained in the Housing Act 1985 as amended and other legislation. This also includes the presence of statutory nuisance as contained within the Environmental Protection Act 1990 and legislation dealing with pests such as mice, rats, cockroaches and bed bugs.
- 9.10 Registered providers should be aware that formal legal action can be taken when an officer of the Council believes that such action is necessary to protect *anyone* affected by the condition of a property and/or land owned or managed by the registered provider.
- 9.11 Should this become necessary the Council will ensure that any legal action will comply with the enforcement policy adopted and published by the Council at the time. It should be noted that the Council may make a reasonable charge as a means of recovering expenses incurred in the serving of certain legal notices.
- 9.12 Partners should be committed to taking action, within agreed timescales, on receipt of a notification of a failure to meet their statutory obligations with regard to housing standards or nuisance caused by their properties or land.
- 9.13 Registered providers should have procedures in place to: -

- ensure that where the Council has received a complaint directly from their tenant or otherwise, to respond to the Council within 48 hours of receipt of such notification, detailing the officer responsible for investigating and resolving the matter;
- ensure the necessary works will be carried out
- act within agreed timescales to attend to repairs or maintenance or remove a statutory nuisance.
- attend case conferences or multi-agency meetings as appropriate
- take the lead on behalf of other partners where a problem on a multi landlord estate involves the majority of its tenants and/or properties.

Sustainability of Existing Stock

- 9.14 Over 13% of homes in Haringey are owned by registered providers, with an estimated 65,000 tonnes of CO₂ emissions coming from this sector, representing around 6-7% of total emissions in the borough. It is therefore vital that registered providers engage in matters of sustainability and support action to improve environmental performance. In addition to environmental levers there are also financial and social benefits from embedding sustainability into the partnership between RPs and the Council.
- 9.15 Registered providers will work with the Council to: -
 - increase the energy efficiency of housing stock in Haringey and to maximise resources and opportunities for tackling fuel poverty in line with the Council's Affordable Warmth Strategy 2009-19².
 - undertake awareness-raising activities through the distribution of information to tenants (where necessary provided by the Council) and the incorporation of sustainability into tenants newsletters, resident panel meetings, Decent Homes workshops and other events, to enable tenants to take action and utilise sources of financial and advisory support available.
 - establish partnerships with energy suppliers in order to access funds for energy efficiency projects.
 - ensure that any partners such as contractors have robust environmental sustainability policies.

- take into account environmental sustainability when carrying out refurbishment of properties and in new developments, to meet or exceed required building standards/best practice, which may include:
 - Rainwater storage in new developments;
 - Consider converting any flat roofs to living green roofs;
 - Consider the use of automatic timed switch-off devices for lighting in public areas within their properties;
 - Install water metering in all homes
 - o Install gas and electricity meters with realtime displays in every home
 - Ensure that dual rate electric meters are replaced with single rate meters, and consider replacing all electric storage heaters
 - Consider installing appropriate micro-renewables (Solar thermal, Ground Source Heat Pumps or Solar PV)
 - Install low level flushes in all new properties or water saving devices in existing properties
 - Install double flush toilets in new and refurbished properties
 - Fit tap and shower aerators and distribute other water saving devices such as shower timers
 - Consider innovative ways of tackling hard-to-treat homes such as Victorian solid wall properties

9.16 The Council will work with registered providers to: -

- provide information and guidance, including relevant literature, to tenants regarding energy and water efficiency and other sustainability issues.
- provide advice and guidance on improving the energy and water efficiency of registered providers stock and the options available for delivering such improvements.

10 Housing Standards

- 10.1 Between them, registered providers and the Council own and manage approximately 30,000 properties across Haringey. Improving the quality of this provision is in everyone's interest.
- 10.2 The quality of the stock and the local estates has a significant impact on the health and wellbeing of the borough's population. It is also a key factor in determining the reputation of the sector in the borough and in signalling how serious individual providers are in helping the Council meet its Corporate Plan aims and objectives.

Estate Walkabouts

- 10.3 Estate walkabouts involve tenants and residents joining officers on regular estate inspections. These inspections should also be attended by other key stakeholders such as elected members. On multi landlord estates the walkabouts should be coordinated between all landlords to ensure they take place at the same time.
- 10.4 The walkabouts should look at all aspects of the estate's condition, including gardens, breaches of tenancy conditions, highways issues, litter and dog fouling and the quality of grounds and planned/cyclical maintenance. By working together in a proactive way, estate walkabouts can contribute towards making the estate a better and more attractive place to live.
- 10.5 A 12 month schedule of dates and times of estate walkabouts covering the period April to March should be produced in advance and forwarded to the Council's Housing Enabling Service who will liaise with elected Members to ensure they are given the opportunity to attend.

Common Management Standards

10.6 Partners agree to work proactively with the Council and Homes for Haringey on the development of common management standards. It is anticipated that standards will be set for: -

- Anti social behaviour
- Grounds maintenance
- Repairs
- Empty properties
- Responding to complaints and members' enquiries
- Rent arrears and income management
- Opportunities for resident engagement and involvement
- 10.7 The Council will collate performance information from partners and publish an annual review of registered providers (please refer to Section 12 Monitoring the Agreement)...

Stock rationalisation

- 10.8 There are over 40 registered providers operating in Haringey with varying levels of stock. Three providers have more than 1,000 units in the borough and between them own and manage over half of all the registered provider stock. At the other end of the scale, eight registered providers own and manage fewer than 50 units. The combined stock of these organisations represents just 1.5% of the registered provider stock in the borough.
- 10.9 It is the Council's preference that local providers have a local presence in Haringey. A review of office locations shows that the average distance between housing estates in Haringey and the nearest housing office is 7 miles, with only a small number of registered providers having a local office in the borough. Registered providers who do not have a local base in Haringey are encouraged to consider how they might provide one through, for example, office sharing. The Council must be be informed of these arrangements.
- 10.10 The Council believes that a coordinated and strategic approach to stock rationalisation will bring about a number of benefits and improvements: -
 - Deliver cost efficiencies
 - Contribute to neighbourhood regeneration
 - Improve neighbourhood and customer service
 - Enable registered providers to concentrate on their core activities and areas

- Generate surpluses to fund new initiatives
- 10.11 All partners to this Agreement will contribute towards the development of a stock rationalisation Strategy for Haringey. The strategy will not attempt to prescribe a single solution or require registered providers to adopt a stock rationalisation programme but establish a framework to support those providers that choose to rationalise their stock.
- 10.12 The Council recognises that stock rationalisation for smaller organisations can be challenging. The Strategy will set out how the Council will work with those smaller organisations to safeguard the provision of BME housing and support services in the borough.

Domestic Violence and Victim Support

- 10.13 The Council has a formal partnership with a provider Hearthstone to provide a holistic package of emotional and practical support for survivors of domestic violence with the borough. A range of practical services are provided which include:
 - Legal advice for civil remedies such as injunctions
 - Housing advice including access to refuge accommodation
 - Counseling
 - The provision of the Sanctuary home security improvement scheme
- 10.14 The Council expects registered providers to work with Hearthstone when appropriate to both support survivors of domestic violence and avoid homelessness. The Council would especially encourage registered providers to work with Hearthstone to operate the Sanctuary Scheme which enables survivors to continue to live in their home safely following incidents of domestic violence. If providers are not able to work with Hearthstone then the Council would expect to see plans of comparable alternative service which are available to their tenants.

Anti Social Behaviour

10.15 Anti-social behaviour (ASB) can seriously damage the quality of life for residents and have a negative impact on neighbourhoods and communities. Ensuring that Haringey is Page 20 of 30

a place where everyone feels safe and has a good quality of life is one of the key outcomes in the Council's Corporate Plan. Both the Council and registered providers have a critical role in achieving this. Registered providers are expected to: -

- Actively combat ASB within their housing stock and on all land they own, and have robust procedures in place to respond to incidents
- Provide intervention services including early mediation to resolve disputes
- Ensure staff are available as witnesses to support enforcement activity through the courts
- Sign the Council/Partnership information sharing protocol (ISP)
- Have in place an ASB Policy that is publicly available on their website
- Provide quarterly data and statistical returns to the Council on ASB activity within stock showing the location, type and nature of ASB as well any enforcement measures taken.
- Participate in Council sponsored problem solving and intervention strategies
- 10.16 In extreme cases where it is deemed necessary to re-house victims of ASB the registered provider will make all endeavours to re-house affected tenants either temporarily or permanently by sourcing units from their own stock

Waste and recycling storage and collection arrangements

10.17 Registered providers will: -

- provide adequate storage space, in negotiation with the Council for refuse containers.
 The frequency of collection will be by agreement but will seek to avoid any overflow or spillage. RPs agrees to provide adequate storage space for recycling containers at or near the waste container storage location where it is practicable to do so.
- ensure that refuse and recycling containers are stored at locations that are kept clean and well maintained and are laid out to be convenient and easy to use for tenants and with good access for collection vehicles and operatives.

10.18 The Council will: -

- work with partner RPs to provide advice and guidance regarding the storage of refuse and recycling containers and make collection arrangements that are designed to fit in with the particular nature and characteristics of individual properties and with the council's waste policies.
- carry out collections according to the agreed schedule and to return containers to the recognised storage locations after emptying. Any spillage caused by collectors through their own actions will be cleared by them before leaving site.

Cleansing and Graffiti Removal

- 10.19 Partner registered providers will put in place arrangements for cleaning external estate areas on a minimum frequency of once per week, or more often where this is warranted, and to make arrangements for dumps to be removed within 24 hours of notification.
- 10.20 The Council will provide advice and guidance about cleansing and dumps removal arrangements. If required by partners, the Council will work with its own service providers to provide quotes to carry out cleansing services and graffiti removal for registered providers. Where such arrangements are made, the Council will also work with partners to facilitate monitoring of work carried out using its own officers and if required produce reports on standards achieved.
- 10.21 The Council will also offer similar advice, guidance and assistance in relation to graffiti removal.

Enforcement

- 10.22 The Council will provide registered providers with advice and guidance to deal with enforcement in relation to waste, cleansing and graffiti.
- 10.23 Registered providers should: -

- seek to design out crime in locations subject to regular abuse. Contact details for Haringey's Crime Prevention Officers can be found in appendix III.
- ensure full cooperation with the Council in seeking to achieve reversal of unauthorised development e.g. removal of satellite dishes in conservation areas or on developments where this is prohibited by planning regulations.
- seek to maintain pest-free conditions in their stock and land. Arrangements should be put in place for prevention, proofing, monitoring of activity and early intervention/treatment.

11 Housing Development & Investment

Funding & Grant Availability

- 11.1 The Council will actively work with the Greater London Authority (GLA) to maximise the availability grant funding for compliant and viable schemes.
- 11.2 Registered providers must inform the Council if they intend to bid for grant funding. The Council will only support grant bids from registered providers that are signatories to this Agreement.
- 11.3 The Council will fully utilise the process of Continuous Market Engagement (CME) to promote compliant, viable schemes brought forward by partners.
- 11.4 Registered Providers will seek to maximise the input to housing investment in the Borough from private finance and other funding sources.

<u>Preferred Partner Status</u>

- 11.5 The Council is in the process of establishing a list of Preferred Development Partners who it will work more closely with on new development opportunities. The Council will: -
 - actively promote only its preferred partners to private developers and house builders

- offer preferred partners land disposal opportunities
- where possible, provide additional funding to preferred partners to facilitate new build opportunities in the borough

Council Owned Land

- 11.6 On Council owned land, site acquisition will be undertaken on an open book basis.

 Registered providers are required to submit a development appraisal (form of appraisal to be agreed) with initial feasibility drawings prior to exchange of contracts and a further development appraisal once planning permission has been granted and the building contract has been let.
- 11.7 The registered provider should endeavour to work with the Council to secure the site soon after exchange of contracts. This will entail the erection of hoardings/signage and where necessary demolition works.
- 11.8 Prior to exchange of contracts, the registered provider must demonstrate, where applicable, the timetable for securing grant funding from the GLA. The conditional sale of land to a registered provide, subject to funding, will be undertaken at the Council's discretion.

Development Standards

- 11.9 Registered providers that undertake development must adhere to and, where possible, exceed the standards required by the GLA's current design and quality standards irrespective of grant funding.
- 11.10 Development proposals should be submitted to the Council for pre-application assessment and advice. Schemes will be referred to Haringey's Design Panelⁱ for scrutiny and feedback where appropriate.

¹ The Haringey Design Panel is made up of external design experts, including architects, urban designers, town planners and transport and landscape specialists who provide independent advice to the Council.

- 11.11 Registered providers will approach the planning and design of new schemes with a view to minimising future management and maintenance issues e.g. communal satellite/cable connectivity, community safety, use of good quality and low maintenance external components and finishes etc. Satellite/cable connectivity should be as such that it is able to receive all the stations that future occupants are likely to require.
- 11.12 Registered providers should use reasonable endeavours to ensure that at least 25% of the workforces carrying out the development live within the London Borough of Haringey. This might involve pooling and sharing of information sub regionally by registered provider partners to facilitate the process.

Secured by Design

- 11.13 All parties of this agreement recognise the importance of ensuring that all new development adheres to the 'Secured by Design' principles.
- 11.14 Registered providers agree to consult with Haringey's Crime Prevention Officers (Met Police) at Pre Planning stage (see appendix III for contact details). This consultation can be facilitated by the Council's planning officers.

Lifetime Homes

11.15 The Council aims to meet the target of 100% Lifetime Homes as set by the GLA's London Plan for all new housing in the borough and expects all partners to co-operate in the achievement of this target.

Wheelchair accessible housing

11.16 As a minimum 10% of all general needs rented housing should be designed and constructed to be suitable for occupation by wheelchair users. 100% of supported extra care schemes should be suitable for wheelchair user occupation. The levels of wheelchair adapted housing in other schemes shall be the subject of negotiation and agreement with the Council.

- 11.17 Given the nature of disability and the changing nature of needs, registered providers are required to consult with the Council in particular Occupational Therapists, Lettings and Medical Advisors during the design and construction phases of any development. The Council appreciates that it is impossible to predict future needs exactly, but the increasing levels of obesity in society make it wise, in the Council's opinion, to design wheel chair adapted properties with the space and facilities for such a client group.
- 11.18 The Council will endeavour to pre allocate to wheelchair adapted properties, but given that need may not match demand at any particular moment in time, would like, following negotiation with the registered provider, to have the facility to offer wheelchair adapted properties on short term tenancy agreements to none wheel chair users to avoid void losses and to potentially retain access to the properties for future need.
- 11.19 The Council will endeavour to pre-allocate to properties designed for occupation by a wheelchair user.

Building for Life

- 11.20 It is expected that on registered provider led projects CABE Building for Life standards³ are used to assess proposals at an early stage and throughout the planning process to ensure effective place shaping.
- 11.21 Registered providers will work with the Council to assess proposed schemes against the Building for Life Standards to ensure that the highest possible score is achieved taking into account scheme viability issues.

Car Parking

11.22 Registered Providers should ensure that prospective tenants and leaseholders of carfree developments are advised of area car-parking regulations.

12 Safeguarding

Safeguarding Children

- 12.1 Safeguarding children is everyone's responsibility. The London Child Protection Procedures⁴ stress the need for all agencies and partners to work together to safeguard children. The procedures provide clear guidance on what is expected of all agencies who work with children or adults who are parents.
- 12.2 The Council is committed to working with its partners to ensure that safeguarding responsibilities are delivered. Registered providers are expected to flag situations where there are safeguarding concerns to Children's Services through agreed referral routes and to work co-operatively with Children's Services on cases, sharing information as appropriate.
- 12.3 It is a requirement of registered providers operating in the borough to ensure that their organisations have regard to their responsibilities in relation to s.11 of the Children's Act 2004⁵ and have policies and procedures in place which promote child welfare and safeguarding. Registered providers agree to work with the Council to ensure that their staff are competent in identifying child protection issues and concerns.
- 12.4 The Council will provide advice and support as required to ensure that compliance with s.11 is achieved. The Council will provide contact details for a Nominated Safeguarding Officer who will act as a link person between the Council and registered providers in cases of child protection.
- 12.5 In situations where a serious case review is commissioned by the Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB)⁶ following the death or serious injury to a child, registered providers will co-operate fully with the review process to ensure that any learning can lead to improvements in safeguarding arrangements.
- 12.6 The Council will work to facilitate training and provide materials on safeguarding children for registered providers.

Safeguarding Adults

- 12.7 Working to safeguard vulnerable adults is also an important area of responsibility for the Council and RP's operating in the borough.
- 12.8 Registered providers will work with the Council to ensure that their staff are aware of issues concerning the safety of vulnerable adults and are able to raise alerts in situations of concern. Information will be shared as appropriate to allow cases to be investigated and for appropriate measures to be put in place.
- 12.9 The Council will work with registered providers to support the delivery of appropriate training and provide materials to promote the importance of safeguarding adults.

13 Monitoring the Agreement

- 13.1 Each registered provider shall complete the Haringey lettings return on a quarterly basis. Providers with small stock holdings (fewer than 50) of a very low turnover of units (fewer than 10 per year) shall be asked to submit an annual return only.
- 13.2 All registered providers are required to provide the Council with annual performance monitoring data. Data should be provided for each 12 month period (April to March) no later than 30 June following year end (i.e. 31 March). The following information should be provided:-
 - Number of new developments started on site (expressed as an absolute number and percentage of planned programme)
 - Number of practical completions (expressed as an absolute number and percentage of planned programme)
 - Percentage of completions built to wheelchair standard
 - Percentage of family homes with three or more bedrooms
 - Average rent for new properties (expressed by bedroom size)
 - Average re-let time for existing homes (days)
 - Percentage of Emergency repairs completed within target time (please state your target)

- Percentage of Urgent repairs completed within target time (please state your target)
- Percentage of Non-urgent repairs completed within target time (please state your target)
- Percentage of routine repairs where an appointment was made and kept
- Percentage of lettings to BME households
- Percentage of customer of customers that are fairly/very satisfied with overall service
- Percentage of customer of customers that are fairly/very satisfied with repairs service
- Number of formal complaints received
- Percentage of complaints satisfactorily resolved
- Percentage of all complaints referred to the Ombudsman
- Percentage of Member Enquiries replied to within 10 working days
- 13.3 The Council will work with each registered provider to review its performance against the requirements set out in this Agreement on an annual basis. This will also consider how Improvements can be made and problems resolved.
- 13.4 In addition, each registered provider shall attend a meeting notified by the council every three months to consult and examine progress with their development programme.

14 Addressing Poor Performance

- 14.1 In the event that a registered provider continually fails to meet the standards set out in this Agreement, the Council will meet with the individual provider concerned within 14 days of notification by the Council.
- 14.2 The registered provider shall use its best endeavours to agree an action plan with the Council that sets out timescales for achieving the performance requirement and a date for a further review to ensure standards are maintained.
- 14.3 If a registered provider fails to improve and maintain its performance, a referral may be made to the Council's Overview & Scrutiny Panel. Registered providers should use their best endeavours to comply with the outcome of the Scrutiny Panel.



¹ Section 5 Housing Act 2004 http://www.opsi.gov.uk/acts/acts2004/ukpga 20040034 en 4#pt1-ch5

² Affordable Warmth Strategy 2009-19 http://www.haringey.gov.uk/index/housing_and_planning/housing/housingadvice/homeheatloss/affordablewarmthst_rategy.htm

³ Building For Life http://www.buildingforlife.org/

⁴ London Child Protection Procedures http://www.londonscb.gov.uk/procedures/

⁵ Children Act 2004 (s.11) http://www.opsi.gov.uk/acts/acts2004/ukpga 20040031 en 3#pt2-pb1-l1g11

⁶ Haringey LSCB http://www.haringeylscb.org/index.htm